
 
 

  

PUBLIC NOTICE 
REGULAR MEETING 

  
The Arvada Urban Renewal Authority (AURA) Board of Commissioners will hold its 
regular board meeting in person at 5603 Yukon Street, Suite B, Arvada, CO 80002, at 4 
p.m. on Wednesday, August 6, 2025.  
 
Anyone wishing to attend virtually may register as follows: 
 

Register in advance for this webinar: 
https://arvadaco-gov.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_IK_-hOlxTV-kPz3FcgSrBw 

 

 
 

 
After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information 
about joining the webinar. 

 
If you need assistance with the virtual webinar process or have questions or comments 
for the AURA Board regarding the agenda items, please contact cbriscoe@arvada.org 
prior to noon on August 6, 2025. A recording of the meeting will be posted on AURA’s 
website following the webinar. 
 
Agenda information is attached. 
 
 
 
                                                                                             
       Carrie Briscoe 
       Recording Secretary 
     
 
 
 
 
POSTED:  August 1, 2025 

https://arvadaco-gov.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_IK_-hOlxTV-kPz3FcgSrBw
mailto:cbriscoe@arvada.org




 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE AURA BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
5603 Yukon St, Suite B, Arvada, Colorado 

4 p.m., Wednesday, August 6, 2025 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING – 4 P.M. 
 

1. Call to Order     

2. Roll Call of Members 

3. Approval of the Summary of Minutes – June 4, 2025 
 
4. Public Comment on Issues Not Scheduled for Public Hearing – Three Minute Limit 

5. Public Hearing – None  

6. Study Session 

A. Urban Renewal Area Formation Process, Roles, and Responsibilities – Corey Hoffman, General 

Counsel 

B. City of Arvada Sub-Area Plans – Patty McCartney, Senior Planner 

7. Old Business – None 

8. New Business 

A. AR-25-09  A Resolution Authorizing Designated Arvada Urban Renewal Authority Officials 
to Approve an Estoppel Certificate Related to the Disposition and Development 
Agreement for the Arvada Hilton Garden Inn  
 

B. 58th Avenue North Side Streetscape Temporary Construction Easements 
 

9. Development Update 

10. Comments from Commissioners 

11. Committee Reports 

12. Staff Reports  

13. Executive Session 

A. Instructions to Negotiators, Pursuant to CRS 24-6-402(4)(e) Regarding 5603 Yukon Street 

B. Instructions to Negotiators, Pursuant to CRS 24-6-402(4)(e) Regarding a Reimbursement Request 

Related to Redevelopment in the Olde Town Station Urban Renewal Area 

14. Adjournment 





SUMMARY OF MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
ARVADA URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 4, 2025 
5603 YUKON ST, SUITE B, ARVADA, CO 80002 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

1. Call to Order – Chair Paul Bunyard called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 

2. Roll Call of Commissioners  

Those Present:  Chair Paul Bunyard, Vice Chair Peter Kazura, Debra Bustos, Daria 
Drago, Eli Feret, and Lauren Simpson 
 
Absent: Tim Steinhaus 
 
AURA staff present: Carrie Briscoe, Executive Director; Alex Van Zante, 

Redevelopment Manager and Corey Hoffmann, Legal Counsel 

 

Vice Chair Kazura moved to excuse Commission Steinhaus. 

 

The following votes were cast on the Motion: 

Voting Yes: Bunyard, Bustos, Drago, Feret, Kazura, Simpson 

Voting No: None 

The motion was approved. 

 

3. Approval of the Summary of Minutes – May 7, 2025. 

Commissioner Simpson moved to approve the minutes. 

      
The following votes were cast on the Motion: 
Voting Yes:  Bunyard, Bustos, Drago, Feret, Kazura, Simpson 
Voting No: None 
The motion was approved. 

 

4. Public Comment of Issues not scheduled for Public Hearing – Three Minute 
Limit 
None 
 

5. Public Hearing 

 None 

 

6. Study Session 

      None 
 

7. Old Business 

 None 

 



 
Arvada Urban Renewal Authority 
June 4, 2025 
Page 2  

 
 

8. New Business  

A. 2024 Financial Audit – Steve Sauer, Managing Director, Forvis Mazars 

 

   Steve Sauer provided the Board with an overview of the 2024 Financial Audit. 

   Chair Bunyard asked if there was any feedback regarding internal controls of 

   finances moving forward; Steve Sauer and City of Arvada Deputy Director of Finance 

   Deb Nielsen detailed the internal controls already in place, and stated that they were 

   fundamentally sound.  

  

B. 58th Ave Streetscape – Century Link/Lumen Proposal 

 

Carrie Briscoe provided an overview of the proposal from Century Link/Lumen, 

detailing the line items within the scope of work.  

 

Commissioner Drago asked if the concrete restoration line item could be removed 

from the proposal; Carrie Briscoe stated she would look into that possibility.  

 

Commissioner Simpson mentioned it would be worth considering a wrap around the 

pedestal to enhance public art. 

 

Commissioner Simpson moved to authorize the Executive Director to approve up 

to $33,000 for this project. 

 

The following votes were cast on the Motion: 

Voting Yes: Bunyard, Bustos, Drago, Feret, Kazura, Simpson 

Voting No: None 

The motion was approved. 

 

9. Development Update 

Carrie Briscoe provided an update the Ralston Commons project with projected 
timelines of completion for each building. 
 
Carrie Briscoe provided an update on the Beer Garden project and gave an 
estimated opening date of early July.  
 
Carrie Briscoe provided an update on the Extra Space Storage site, detailing the 
outcome of the pre-application meeting that occurred in May.  
 
Carrie Briscoe provided an update on the Ralston Road Streetscape, sharing that the 
project will be posted for bid in June, with anticipated construction beginning in July 
or August. 
 



 
Arvada Urban Renewal Authority 
June 4, 2025 
Page 3  

 
 

Carrie Briscoe provided an update on the Yukon Streetscape and Post Oak projects, 
sharing that both projects will occur before the Olde Town Design Review Committee 
on June 26th. 
 
Commissioner Simpson asked about the utility undergrounding project in Olde Town 
and mentioned that the affected business owners would be interested in a cost 
sharing agreement to repave the entirety of the alley. 
 
Carrie Briscoe provided an update on the Tabernacle Church property, mentioning 
an impending Letter of Intent being signed for the site. 
 
Commissioner Drago asked if a Study Session presentation has been scheduled 
with City Council to discuss urban renewal and gauge their interest in creating a new 
urban renewal area. Chair Bunyard stated that an agenda item on a future board 
meeting should be scheduled to look at the criteria needed to determine a new urban 
renewal area. 
 

 
10. Comments from Commissioners 

 
Commissioner Simpson updated the Board on a variety of topics, including a 
potential lodging tax at the Arvada Visitor’s Center, the City of Denver’s Gay Games 
host bid, the waste hauling contract with Republic Services, the Mayor’s Reception 
for the Harvest Festival, and a letter for the Board to consider signing with the recent 
sale of the Arvada Press.  
 
Chair Bunyard updated the Board on the Housing Committee’s findings and 
recommendations for the forthcoming Land Development Code updates.  
 

11. Committee Reports 
 None 
  
12. Staff Reports 

 

   Carrie Briscoe directed the Board to the April 2025 Flash Report. 

 

Carrie Briscoe also shared that she attended the 2025 Urban Land Institute Spring 

Meeting with Commissioners Bunyard and Kazura. 

 

Carrie Briscoe also discussed the Arvada Economic Development Association’s 

desire to expand into the studio area located on their side of the building. The Board 

discussed potential uses for the studio space if the Arvada Economic Development 

Association were to relocate. 

 

The Board also discussed the possibility of cancelling the July 2, 2025, meeting due 

to its proximity to a city holiday. The Board agreed to cancel the July 2, 2025, 



 
Arvada Urban Renewal Authority 
June 4, 2025 
Page 4  

 
 

meeting if nothing was on the agenda.  

    

13. Executive Session 
  None 
 

14. Adjournment 

Chair Bunyard adjourned the meeting at approximately 6:15 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

      

Paul Bunyard, Chair 

ATTEST: 

 

       

Carrie Briscoe, Recording Secretary 
 





ARVADA URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 
AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET 

 
Agenda No.: Item 8A 

Meeting Date: August 6, 2025 

Title:   Hilton Garden Inn Estoppel Certificate 
    

 
ACTION PROPOSED:   Approve     
 
BACKGROUND:   AURA entered into a Disposition and Development Agreement (DDA) with 
Arvada Hotel Investors, LLC in 2015 to support the redevelopment of a hotel property within the 
Village Commons Urban Renewal Area. That agreement has been amended over time and includes a 
Betterment Agreement, an Assignment Agreement, and a Special Warranty Deed.  
 
INFORMATION ABOUT THE ITEM:  
 
The Developer sold the property in July to Olympia entities. As part of that transaction, AURA has 
been asked to provide an Estoppel Certificate confirming the status of the agreements. 
 
Summary of Certificate: 
 
All agreements between AURA and the Developer (DDA, Betterment, Assignment, and Deed) are in 
full force and have not been modified except as documented. 
 
The Special Warranty Deed executed by AURA mistakenly references the Olde Town Station Plan. 
AURA confirms the correct plan is the Village Commons Urban Renewal Plan, and the property 
complies with that Plan. 
 
To Staff’s knowledge, the Developer is not in default under any of the agreements and has met its 
obligations. 
 
The Lodging Tax TIF Reimbursement Period has ended. AURA has no further financial obligations to 
the Developer. 
 
The Certificate is binding and can be relied on by the Buyer and Developer during the sale. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Staff recommends approval. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:   I move that approve Resolution AR-25-09, a resolution of the Board of 
Commissioners of the Arvada Urban Renewal Authority approving the Estoppel Certificate to Arvada 
Hotel Investors LLC as Developer and Olympia GG LLC and Olympia OEI I LLC collectively as 
Buyer. 



8/1/2025 
\\FSSHARED\SHARE\AURAMAIN\4 - BOARD INFORMATION\MEETINGS\PACKETS\2025 PACKETS\08-06-2025\AR-25-09 - ESTOPPEL 

CERTIFICATE - HILTON GARDEN INN.DOCX 

RESOLUTION AR-25-09 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE ARVADA URBAN 
RENEWAL AUTHORITY APPROVING THE ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE TO 

ARVADA HOTEL INVESTORS, LLC AS DEVELOPER AND OLYMPIA GG LLC AND 
OLYMPIA OEI I, LLC COLLECTIVELY AS BUYER  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF THE ARVADA URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY, THAT: 

Section 1. The Arvada Urban Renewal Authority hereby approves that Estoppel 
Certificate, attached hereto as Exhibit A, and incorporated herein by this reference, directed to 
Arvada Hotel Investors, LLC as Developer, and Olympia GG LLC and Olympia OEI I, LLC, 
collectively as Buyer, and authorizes the Chair to execute the same on behalf of the Authority.  

DATED this ___ day of ______________, 2025. 

____________________________________ 
Paul Bunyard, Chair  

____________________________________ 
Recording Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

____________________________________ 
Corey Y. Hoffmann, Legal Counsel 



ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE 

This Estoppel Certificate (“Certificate”) is made as of ____________, 2025 (the 

“Effective Date”) by the ARVADA URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY, a body corporate and 

politic of the State of Colorado (the “Authority”). 

RECITALS 

A. The Authority and ARVADA HOTEL INVESTORS, LLC, a Colorado limited

liability company (the “Developer”) are parties to that certain Disposition and

Development Agreement dated January 28, 2015, as further amended by that

certain First Amendment, dated December 17, 2015, and by that certain Certificate

of Completion of Improvements, dated June 19, 2018 (the “Redevelopment

Agreement”), covering the Property described in the Redevelopment Agreement

(the “Property”).

B. The Authority and the Developer are also parties to both that certain Consent to

Assignment dated June 26, 2018 related to the assignment of any TIF Revenues to

Developer’s Lender upon default (the “Assignment Agreement”) and Betterment

Agreement and Waiver of Condition Precedent dated November 4, 2015 and related

to certain planned improvements on the Property the (“Betterment Agreement”).

C. The Authority and the Developer are also parties to that certain Special Warranty

Deed dated December 17, 2015 (the “SWD”), which, among other things, restricted

the uses of the Property to those specified in the Old Town Station Urban Renewal

Plan.

D. The Developer and Olympia GG, LLC and Olympia OEI I, LLC, as tenants in

common, and Olympia Arvada LLC (collectively, the “Buyer”) have entered into

that certain Hotel Purchase and Sale Agreement dated May 16, 2025, as amended

(the “Purchase Agreement”) pursuant to which, amongst other things, Developer

shall sell and convey to Buyer, and Buyer shall purchase from Developer, the

Property, upon Closing (as defined in the Purchase Agreement).

E. As a condition to the consummation of the Purchase Agreement and the

transactions contemplated therewith, and with knowledge that Developer and

Buyer are relying hereon, the Authority has been requested to deliver this Estoppel

Certificate.

F. All capitalized terms not expressly defined herein, shall have the meaning given to

such terms in the Redevelopment Agreement, the Assignment Agreement, the

Betterment Agreement, or the SWD, collectively, the “AURA Agreements”.

ARTICLE I: ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE 

In consideration of the foregoing, the Authority hereby certifies to Developer and Buyer, 

and their successors and assigns as follows: 



 2 

1. A true, complete and correct copy of the documents comprising the Redevelopment 

Agreement, assignments, amendments, and modifications thereto of every nature, if any, is 

attached to this Certificate as Exhibit A (the “Redevelopment Agreement Documents”). The 

Redevelopment Agreement Documents represent the entire agreement between the Authority and 

the Developer with respect to the Redevelopment Agreement and the Project, and the 

Redevelopment Agreement has not otherwise been modified, supplemented or amended except by 

the Redevelopment Agreement Documents attached as Exhibit A. The Redevelopment Agreement 

is in full force and effect and controls the rights and obligations of the Authority and the Developer 

thereunder from and after the Effective Date thereof. 

2. A true, complete and correct copy of the documents comprising the Assignment 

Agreement, assignments, amendments, and modifications thereto of every nature, if any, is 

attached to this Certificate as Exhibit B (the “Assignment Agreement Documents”). The 

Assignment Agreement Documents represent the entire agreement between the Authority and the 

Developer with respect to the Assignment Agreement and the Project, and the Assignment 

Agreement has not otherwise been modified, supplemented or amended except by the Assignment 

Agreement Documents attached as Exhibit B. The Assignment Agreement is in full force and 

effect and controls the rights and obligations of the Authority and the Developer thereunder from 

and after the Effective Date thereof. 

3. A true, complete and correct copy of the documents comprising the Betterment 

Agreement, assignments, amendments, and modifications thereto of every nature, if any, is 

attached to this Certificate as Exhibit C (the “Betterment Agreement Documents”). The 

Betterment Agreement Documents represent the entire agreement between the Authority and the 

Developer with respect to the Betterment Agreement and the Project, and the Betterment 

Agreement has not otherwise been modified, supplemented or amended except by the Betterment 

Agreement Documents attached as Exhibit C. The Betterment Agreement is in full force and effect 

and controls the rights and obligations of the Authority and the Developer thereunder from and 

after the Effective Date thereof. 

4. A true, complete and correct copy of the documents comprising the Special 

Warranty Deed is attached to this Certificate as Exhibit D (the “SWD”). The SWD represents the 

entire agreement between the Authority and the Developer with respect to the SWD and the 

Project, and the SWD has not otherwise been modified, supplemented or amended. The SWD is 

in full force and effect and controls the rights and obligations of the Authority and the Developer 

thereunder from and after the Effective Date thereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Authority 

recognizes and acknowledges that the reference in the SWD to the Old Town Station Urban 

Renewal Plan was inadvertent and incorrect and it should have referenced the Village Commons 

Urban Renewal Plan. The Property is actually governed and managed under the Village Commons 

Urban Renewal Plan. The Authority represents that the Property is in compliance with the terms 

and conditions related to the Village Commons Urban Renewal Plan. 

5. To the current actual knowledge of the Authority, (i) there is no existing default 

under the AURA Agreements with respect to any monetary or non-monetary provision of the same 

and no event has occurred which, with the passage of time or giving of notice, or both, would 

constitute a default with respect to any provision of the AURA Agreements, and (ii) the Developer 



 3 

has performed all of its obligations under the AURA Agreements to the satisfaction of the 

Authority. 

6. The Authority hereby confirms that Reimbursement Period has expired and it is 

under no further obligation to remit any reimbursements of the Lodging Tax TIF to Developer. 

ARTICLE II: MISCELLANEOUS 

1. The provisions of this Certificate shall be binding upon the Authority, its successors 

and assigns, and may be relied upon, and shall inure to the benefit of Buyer and Developer and 

their successors and assigns. 

2. The individual executing and delivering this Certificate on behalf of the Authority 

represents and warrants to Buyer that he or she is duly authorized to make such execution and 

delivery. 

[Signature appears on the following page] 

 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Certificate has been executed and given by the Authority, 

through its duly authorized representative as of the date first set forth above. 

ARVADA URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY,  

a body corporate and politic of the State of Colorado 

 

By:  

Name:  

Title:  

5603 Yukon St. Suite B 

Arvada, Colorado 80002 

 



 A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS 

[see attached] 





























































































 B-1 

EXHIBIT B 

ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS 

[see attached]







 C-1 

EXHIBIT C 

BETTERMENT AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS 

[see attached]















 D-1 

EXHIBIT D 

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 

[see attached] 

 

 

 













 
\\4158-8622-9078  v3v4   

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION LICENSE AGREEMENT 
STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS 

 
 

This Temporary Construction License Agreement (this "Agreement") is entered into as of the ____ 
day of _____________, 2025 (the “Effective Date”), by and between by HK NEW PLAN ARVADA 
PLAZA, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Licensor”), and ARVADA URBAN 
RENEWAL AUTHORITY, a body corporate and politic of the State of Colorado ("Licensee").  Licensor 
and Licensee are sometimes referred to individually as a “Party” and together as “Parties”.  

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Licensor is the owner of that certain real property more fully depicted on Exhibit A 
(the “Licensed Property”). 

WHEREAS Licensor agrees that Licensee may perform certain streetscape improvements to the 
Licensed Property, with the location of each such improvement generally depicted on Exhibit B. 
WHEREAS, Licensor desires to grant to Licensee, and Licensee desires to accept from Licensor, a 
temporary construction license for the Licensed Property in order to allow Licensee to perform the Work 
as described on Exhibit C (the “Work”), upon the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement.   

WHEREAS, Licensor agrees that all streetscape improvements and the ongoing maintenance 
thereof will be the responsibility of Licensor after construction is completed.   

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, the parties 
hereto agree as follows: 

1. Grant/Permitted Use.  Licensor hereby grants, declares, establishes, and creates for the 
benefit of Licensee, its employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors, assigns, and a temporary non-
exclusive license (the “License”) on, over, under, through, and across the Licensed Property: (a) for the 
purpose of conducting the Work; and (b) for reasonable access, ingress, and egress necessary to accomplish 
the foregoing (collectively, the “Permitted Use”).   

2. Term.  Unless extended by written amendment hereto signed by the parties, the License 
shall expire upon the earliest to occur of: (a) the date on which Licensee completes the Work on the 
Licensed Property as evidenced by written notice to Licensor thereof and subject to the inspection and 
approval of the City of Arvada and/or Arvada Urban Renewal Authority of the same; (b) the date on which 
the License is otherwise terminated by mutual agreement ; or (c) 180 days after the start of the Work, or 
such other date agreed to by the parties as provided therein.   

3. Performance Standards.  No activities other than those described above as a Permitted Use 
under Section 1 hereof shall be conducted on the Licensed Property.  All activities conducted on the 
Licensed Property shall be performed in a safe and workmanlike manner and in full compliance with all 
applicable laws, including Licensee obtaining all licenses and permits and paying all fees required to utilize 
the Licensed Property and any applicable roads, streets or other property between such parcels.  Licensor 
hereby agrees to reasonably cooperate with Licensee with respect to Licensee’s performance of the Work. 

4. Right of Licensor.  Licensor shall retain the right to enter and use the Licensed Property 
for any reason provided that such entry does not unreasonably interfere with or impede Licensee’s use of 
the Licensed Property for the Permitted Use in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  

9th
July



 
\\4158-8622-9078  v3v4   

5. Insurance.  Licensee is self-insured and requires all contractors to maintain, in force a 
commercial general liability insurance policy providing coverage for injuries to persons as well as damage 
to property in an amount not less than $2,000,000 in the aggregate and not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence relating to the acts and omission of Licensee and its employees, agents and contractors relating 
to the exercise of Licensee’s rights under this Agreement.  Without limiting the foregoing, during the Term, 
Licensee shall maintain a commercial general liability insurance policy insuring against claims for death, 
personal injury or property damage and Licensor shall be named as an additional insured under all liability 
policies.  Licensee shall require Licensee’s invitees or contractor to provide copies of such insurance upon 
Licensor’s request prior to undertaking any activities on the Property.  Licensee is prohibited by Article XI, 
Section 1, Colorado Constitution, from indemnifying anyone. Therefore, notwithstanding any agreement to 
the contrary, Licensee does not indemnify Licensor or anyone else under this Agreement. 

6. Restoration.  All use by the Licensee on the Licensed Property must be carried out in a 
manner expected to minimize disturbance to the Licensed Property, any improvements thereon, and the 
Licensor’s intended purposes therefor. If damage to any portion of Licensor’s property not within the 
Licensed Property results from the use of the Licensed Property or elsewhere on Licensor’s property, 
Licensee will make such repairs, including without limitation repaving, resurfacing, recurbing and 
restriping of roads and driveways, as well as replacing damaged landscaping, or take such other action as 
may be necessary to restore the Licensed Property or Licensor’s property to a condition comparable to its 
prior condition.  

7. Environmental Covenants and Compliance with Applicable Laws.  Licensee shall not store 
or deposit any hazardous materials, hazardous wastes, or toxic substances (as described in any applicable 
federal and/or state environmental laws) upon the Licensed Property in violation of any applicable law, or 
use the Licensed Property in violation of any federal, state or local law, ordinance or regulation. 

8. Default.  In the event of any default by Licensee in performance of its obligations under 
this Lease, Licensor may deliver written notice of the default to Licensee and Licensee will have ten (10) 
days after receipt of the notice to cure the default; provided, however, if such default is not reasonably 
capable of cure within such 10-day period, and Licensee has begun diligently working to cure such default 
within such 10-day period, then Licensee shall have not more than thirty (30) days to cure such default 
provided Licensee commenced a cure within such initial 10-day period. If Licensee fails to cure the default 
within the time periods set forth above, then Licensor will have the right to terminate this Agreement and 
revoke any and all privileges and rights granted to Licensee under this Agreement upon written notice to 
Licensee and to exercise all other rights and remedies available to Licensor under this Agreement, at law 
or in equity, all such rights and remedies being cumulative and not exclusive, and the exercise of any remedy 
will not be deemed to be a waiver of any other right, remedy, or privilege provided for herein or available 
at law or in equity. 

9. Notices.  All notices to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and given 
by personal delivery, nationally-recognized overnight courier (such as Federal Express), or United States 
certified mail, postage prepaid, properly addressed as follows, or to such other address as any Party may 
specify by written notice to another Party delivered pursuant to the requirements of this Section, which 
notice may also be placed of record, and shall be deemed received on the date of actual receipt or refusal to 
accept delivery thereof: 



 
\\4158-8622-9078  v3v4   

To Licensor: HK NEW PLAN ARVADA PLAZA, LLC  
℅ Brixmor Property Group 
200 Ridge Pike, Suite 100 
Conshohocken, PA 19428 
Attention: General Counsel 

  
  
with a copy to: 
  HK NEW PLAN ARVADA PLAZA, LLC 

℅ Brixmor Property Group 
1525 Faraday Avenue, Suite 350 
Carlsbad, CA  92008 
Attention: Vice President, Legal Services 

  
 To Licensee: Arvada Urban Renewal Authority 
 5603 Yukon Street, Suite B 
 Arvada, CO 80002 
 Attention: Carrie Briscoe 
 Email: cbriscoe@arvada.org 
 

10. Maintenance Obligations and Future Use of Licensed Property.  Licensee acknowledges 
that upon its completion of the Work and approval obtained by the City of Arvada, all of the improvements 
described herein shall be transferred to Licensor. Licensor acknowledges and agrees that all maintenance 
responsibilities arising from or related to the Work, including all costs and expenses related thereto, shall 
be performed in accordance with that certain Access Easement and Maintenance Agreement of even date 
herewith between Licensor and Licensee. 

11. Successors and Assigns.  The Agreement shall be binding on Licensor, Licensee, and their 
respective successors and assigns. 

12. Section Headings.  The Section headings in this Agreement are inserted only for 
convenience and reference and shall in no way define, limit, or prescribe the scope or intent of any 
provisions of this Agreement. 

13. Waivers.  No provision of this Agreement shall be deemed waived except by a writing 
executed by the Party against whom the waiver is sought to be enforced.  No waiver of any provision of 
this Agreement shall be deemed a continuing waiver of such provision or deemed a waiver of any other 
provision of this Agreement. 

14. Amendment.  This Agreement may not be amended or terminated except by a written 
instrument signed by the Parties. 

15. Authority to Execute.  Each party executing this Agreement represents and warrants that it 
is duly authorized to execute and this Agreement and perform its obligations hereunder. 

16. Miscellaneous. 

 This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Colorado.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original, but 
all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement.  If any provision of this Agreement 
as applied to any party or to any circumstance shall be adjudged by a court to be void or unenforceable, the 
same shall in no way affect any other provision of this Agreement, the application of any such provision in 
any other circumstances or the validity or enforceability of this Agreement as a whole.  All the parties 



 
\\4158-8622-9078  v3v4   

hereto and their attorneys have had full opportunity to review and participate in the drafting of the final 
form of this Agreement.  Accordingly, this Agreement shall be construed without regard to any presumption 
or other rule of construction against the party causing the Agreement to be drafted.  Except as otherwise 
provided in this Agreement, all rights, powers, and privileges conferred hereunder upon the parties shall be 
cumulative and not restrictive to those given by law.  Pronouns, wherever used in this Agreement, and of 
whatever gender, shall include natural persons and corporations and districts of every kind and character, 
and the singular shall include the plural wherever and as often as may be appropriate.  In the event that any 
party is required to commence any action or proceeding against the other in order to enforce the provisions 
hereof, the substantially prevailing party in any such action shall be awarded, in addition to any amounts 
for relief otherwise awarded, all reasonable costs incurred in connection therewith, including attorneys’ 
fees.  No waiver by either party of any default under this Agreement shall be effective or binding upon such 
party unless made in writing.  No waiver of any default shall be deemed a waiver of any other or subsequent 
default hereunder.  None of the terms or provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed to create a 
partnership between the parties and their respective businesses or otherwise, nor shall it cause them to be 
considered joint venturers or members of any joint enterprise. 
 

[Signature Pages Follow]  



 
\\4158-8622-9078  v3v4   

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 

 
 
LICENSOR: 
 
HK NEW PLAN ARVADA PLAZA, LLC, a Delware limited liability company 
  
 
By:        
Name:        
Title:        
 
 
 

Gregory Finley
EVP, President, West



 
\\4158-8622-9078  v3v4   

LICENSEE: 
 
ARVADA URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 
 

 
By:        
Name:        
Title:        
 
 
 
 



 
\\4158-8622-9078  v3v4   

 
 
 
 
 



 
\\4158-8622-9078  v3v4   

 
 
 
 

 
 



 
\\4158-8622-9078  v3v4   

 
 

 



 
\\4158-8622-9078  v3v4   

EXHIBIT B 
 

DEPICTION OF THE WORK 
 

Engineering Drawings 
 

 
 

 



 
\\4158-8622-9078  v3v4   

EXHIBIT B 
 

Landscape Drawings 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
\\4158-8622-9078  v3v4   

EXHIBIT B 
 

Landscape Legend 
 
 

 



 
\\4158-8622-9078  v3v4   

 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

Description of the Work 
 

The Arvada Urban Renewal Authority desires to implement streetscape revitalization and 
beautification along the north side of 58th Avenue from Kipling Street to Independence 
Street, excluding the area directly fronting Starbucks. 
 
This beautification project simplifies the planting design, includes hardy plants, makes 
allowance for heat and splash from the roadway, and acknowledges the harsh conditions 
inherent to being along a major arterial roadway.  The design also creates a visual pattern 
and identity for drivers and pedestrians moving within and through Ralston 
Creek.  Design changes include: 
 
Replacing metal edger with concrete 
Replacing existing plants with hardier, more sustainable plants 
Positioning plants further from the roadway 
Adjusting plant layout to a more random, naturalistic pattern 
Replacing wood mulch with rock mulch and cobble 
Adding small boulders for year-round interest 
Removing and replacing existing trees incompatible with new proposed layout 

 
 



 

 

 
 

Summary report:  
Litera Compare for Word 11.2.0.54 Document comparison done on 

5/6/2025 4:59:07 PM 
Style name: Custom Converter 
Intelligent Table Comparison: Active 
Original DMS: nd://4158-8622-9078/3/Brixmor Temporary Construction 
License Agreement Streetscape.doc 
Modified DMS: nd://4158-8622-9078/4/Brixmor Temporary Construction 
License Agreement Streetscape.doc 
Changes:  
Add  6 
Delete  7 
Move From 0 
Move To 0 
Table Insert 0 
Table Delete 0 
Table moves to 0 
Table moves from 0 
Embedded Graphics (Visio, ChemDraw, Images etc.) 0 
Embedded Excel  0 
Format changes 0 
Total Changes:  13 

 
 





























































AURA Flash Report FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY

Balances as of May 31, 2025 UNOFFICIAL & UNAUDITED

CASH & INVESTMENTS

Wells Fargo Bank Account Balance Hold Net to AURA

General - Checking (0193) 928,736 -                      928,736

Ralston Fields - Checking (4061) 3,210,208 3,210,208

Ralston Fields Investments (9353) 0 -                      0

Olde Town Station - Checking (0895) 2,384,416 (700,000)             1,684,416

Village Commons - Checking (0887) 309,529 -                      309,529

First Bank of Arvada

2.00% CD Maturity 10/11/2027 (4548) 359,860 0.00% 359,860

CSIP

Ralston Fields Fund  (9003) 14,076 0.3698% 14,076

Olde Town Station (9008) 1,091,415 0.3698% 1,091,415

Ralston Fields Fund  (9009) 1,638,436 0.3698% 1,638,436

VectraBank

3.50% Ralston Fields Fund (4835) - Money Market moving to CSIP after 6/5/25 4,686 0.2546% 4,686

3.72% Village Commons (9139) - (exp May 2025) 1,082,931 0.3105% 1,082,931

NET CASH AVAILABLE TO AURA 10,324,294

REAL ESTATE OWNED

Date Acq. Name Address  Purchase Price Debt/Discount Net Value

2016 Arvada Square (only Lot 1 left) 9465 Ralston Road 4,963,065 4,963,064 1

2022 AURA Office Building 5603 Yukon St 1,175,000 0 1,175,000

2023 Hot Dog Building 7611 Grandview Ave 600,000 563,250 36,750

NET VALUE OF REAL ESTATE OWNED 1,211,751

LONG TERM PAYABLES Original Current

Loan Loan Start Date / Term Date Loan Balance Payments Loan Balance

Arvada Square June 1, 2016 / June 1, 2028 5,000,000 3,264,121 1,735,879

Brooklyn's January 1, 2016 / January 1, 2030 2,745,000 1,657,500 1,087,500

Wheat Ridge 2006/2026* 1,800,000 1,700,000 100,000

Ralston Commons 2024/2028 12,000,000 1,000,000 11,000,000

NET LONG TERM PAYABLES $13,923,379

LONG TERM RECEIVABLES Original Current

Loan Loan Start Date / Term Date Loan Balance Loan Balance

Ralston Commons July 11, 2024 / sale of the project or January 1, 2028 3,500,000 3,500,000

Ralston Commons (forgiveable 11/11/2026) July 11, 2024 / sale of the project or January 1, 2028 5,000,000 5,000,000

Trolley Park (pending site change) TBD 465,000 465,000

Ralston Gardens January 3, 2024 / January 3, 2064 1% simple interest annually 215,190 215,190

NET LONG TERM RECEIVABLES $9,180,190

///////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////

Actual Revenues Actual Expenses

Revenue Expenses YTD YTD
Ralston Fields 8,820,000           3,889,200           3,986,505 1,369,444           

Olde Town Station 2,541,905           4,720,000           984,287 454,763

Jefferson Center 3,500,000           3,500,000           0 0

Northwest Arvada 25,000,000        25,000,000        13,581,317 10,108,844

Village Commons 675,200              174,847              260,642 72,409

TOTALS 40,537,105        37,284,047        $18,812,751 $12,005,460

2025 Budget Expended YTD

Operating Expenses 768,476 219,673

 TOTAL EXPENSES $12,225,133

*1 payment due to the City of Arvada.

% change from 

prior period

GROSS INCOME & EXPENSES BY FUND  As of May 31, 2025

GENERAL FUND EXPENSES As of May 31, 2025

2025 BUDGET

Page 1 of 1 7/31/2025



AURA Flash Report FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY

Balances as of June 30, 2025 UNOFFICIAL & UNAUDITED

CASH & INVESTMENTS

Wells Fargo Bank Account Balance Hold Net to AURA

General - Checking (0193) 765,862 -                      765,862

Ralston Fields - Checking (4061) 2,911,828 (4,686)                 2,907,142

Ralston Fields & Olde Town Station Investments (9353) 1,082,907 -                      1,082,907

Olde Town Station - Checking (0895) 2,697,272 (700,000)             1,997,272

Village Commons - Checking (0887) 1,392,771 (1,082,907)         309,864

First Bank of Arvada

2.00% CD Maturity 10/11/2027 (4548) 361,659 0.50% 361,659

CSIP

Ralston Fields Fund  (9003) 14,126 0.3569% 14,126

Olde Town Station (9008) 1,095,311 0.3569% 1,095,311

Ralston Fields Fund  (9009) 1,644,285 0.3569% 1,644,285

VectraBank

3.50% *Ralston Fields Fund (4835) - Money Market 0 -100.0000% 0

3.72% *Village Commons (9139) - renewed 6 month CD (May 2025) 1,782 -99.8355% 1,782

*both accounts were moved to WF Money Market

NET CASH AVAILABLE TO AURA 10,180,209

REAL ESTATE OWNED

Date Acq. Name Address  Purchase Price Debt/Discount Net Value

2016 Arvada Square (only Lot 1 left) 9465 Ralston Road 4,963,065 4,963,064 1

2022 AURA Office Building 5603 Yukon St 1,175,000 0 1,175,000

2023 Hot Dog Building 7611 Grandview Ave 600,000 563,250 36,750

NET VALUE OF REAL ESTATE OWNED 1,211,751

LONG TERM PAYABLES Original Current

Loan Loan Start Date / Term Date Loan Balance Payments Loan Balance

Arvada Square June 1, 2016 / June 1, 2028 5,000,000 3,864,121 1,135,879

Brooklyn's January 1, 2016 / January 1, 2030 2,745,000 1,671,529 1,073,471

Wheat Ridge 2006/2026* 1,800,000 1,700,000 100,000

Ralston Commons 2024/2028 12,000,000 1,000,000 11,000,000

NET LONG TERM PAYABLES $13,309,350

LONG TERM RECEIVABLES Original Current

Loan Loan Start Date / Term Date Loan Balance Loan Balance

Ralston Commons July 11, 2024 / sale of the project or January 1, 2028 3,500,000 3,500,000

Ralston Commons (forgiveable 11/11/2026) July 11, 2024 / sale of the project or January 1, 2028 5,000,000 5,000,000

Trolley Park (pending site change) TBD 465,000 465,000

Ralston Gardens January 3, 2024 / January 3, 2064 1% simple interest annually 215,190 215,190

NET LONG TERM RECEIVABLES $9,180,190

///////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////

Actual Revenues Actual Expenses

Revenue Expenses YTD YTD
Ralston Fields 8,820,000           3,889,200           4,684,363 2,029,871           

Olde Town Station 2,541,905           4,720,000           1,370,121 532,347

Jefferson Center 3,500,000           3,500,000           75,000 75,000

Northwest Arvada 25,000,000        25,000,000        14,961,856 10,129,552

Village Commons 675,200              174,847              300,527 100,498

TOTALS 40,537,105        37,284,047        $21,391,867 $12,867,268

2025 Budget Expended YTD

Operating Expenses 768,476 249,306

 TOTAL EXPENSES $13,116,574

*1 payment due to the City of Arvada.

% change from 

prior period

GROSS INCOME & EXPENSES BY FUND  As of June 30, 2025

GENERAL FUND EXPENSES As of June 30, 2025

2025 BUDGET

Page 1 of 1 7/31/2025


	Posting - Meeting 08-06-2025
	Agenda 08-06-2025
	06-04-2025 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Cover Sheet - Hilton Garden Inn Estoppel Certificate
	AR-25-09 - Estoppel Certificate - Hilton Garden Inn
	Hilton Garden Inn Estoppel Certificate
	AURA - Estoppel _AURA Agreements.pdf
	Disposition and Redevelopment Agreement.pdf
	Disp and Redev 1st Amendment.pdf
	Disp and Redev Cert of Completion.pdf
	AURA - Estoppel _AURA Agreements
	Consent to Assignment Signed 06-2018.pdf
	AURA - Estoppel _AURA Agreements
	Signed Betterment Agreement Arvada Hotel Investors 11-4-15.pdf
	AURA - Estoppel _AURA Agreements
	AURA SWD to AHI.pdf

	Brixmor Temporary Construction License Agreement Streetscape FINAL2025.07.03
	Jiffy Lube - Temporary Construction Easement - 58th Ave
	McDonalds Temp Construction License Agreement for Streetscape
	Flash Report - 05-31-2025
	Flash Report - 06-30-2025



